
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
 MEETING AGENDA 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

Roy Swearingen, Mayor  
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem 

Peter Murray, Council Member 
Vincent Salimi, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 

 

TUESDAY 
MAY 5, 2020 

VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE  
  

6:00 P.M.  
 

 
DUE TO THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA’S DECLARATION OF EMERGENCY – THIS 
MEETING IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO AUTHORIZATION FROM GOVERNOR 

NEWSOM’S EXECUTIVE ORDERS – CITY COUNCIL AND COMMISSION MEETINGS ARE 
NO LONGER OPEN TO IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE.  

 
SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS TO CITY CLERK BEFORE OR DURING THE MEETING VIA EMAIL  

hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us 
Comments received before the close of the item will be read into the record and limited to 3 
minutes.  Please include your full name, city of residence and agenda item you are commenting 
on.  
 

 
WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 

 
LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   
 
VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 
 
If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Iopu at (510) 724-8928 or hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable  
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us . 

Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds 
and declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public 
agencies in this State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of 
the law that their actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  
The people of this State do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  
The people, in delegating authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what 
is good for the people to know and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on 
remaining informed so that they may retain control over the instruments they have created. 

CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 
 
CLICK HERE for City Updates 
 
CLICK HERE for County Updates 

1 of 132

mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/
mailto:hiopu@ci.pinole.ca.us
http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus
https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/


 

Pinole City Council  
Agenda –May 5, 2020 
Page 2 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 
TROOPS 

 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 

NO CLOSED SESSION SCHEDULED 
 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 

 
A. Proclamations  

 

 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 

 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of the Meeting of April 7, 2020 
 

B. Receive the April 18, 2020 – May 1, 2020  List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$356,733.12 and the May 1, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $386,615.76 
 

C. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence Of Local Emergency [Action: Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 

 
D. Approving A Side Letter To The Memorandum Of Understanding Between The 

City Of Pinole And IAFF Local 1230 To Extend The Term And Implement A 
Salary Increase [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (A. Murray)] 

 
   
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 

2 of 132



City Council   
Agenda – May 5, 2020 
Page 3  

 
A. Adopt Resolution Declaring Intent for the Levy and Collection of Annual 

Assessments for the Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment 
District for FY 2020/2021, Setting the Date of the Public Hearing, and Approving the 
Annual Engineer’s Report [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. 
Miller)] 

 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A. Report From Pinole Branch Library On Fiscal Year (FY) 2019/20 Utilization 

[Action: Receive and File Report (A. Murray)] 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 
A. Mayor Report 

1. Announcements 
 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 

 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of May 19, 2020 In Remembrance 

of Amber Swartz.  
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 72 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
POSTED:  April 30, 2020 at 4:00 P.M. 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 

3 of 132



7A 

Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 1 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 

April 7, 2020 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 

TROOPS 
 
The City Council Meeting was held in the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Swearingen called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order 5:38 p.m. 
and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
2. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
 

A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Roy Swearingen, Mayor 
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Mayor Pro Tem  
Peter Murray, Councilmember  
Vincent Salimi, Councilmember  
Anthony Tave, Councilmember 
 
 B. STAFF PRESENT 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
Hector De La Rosa, Assistant City Manager 
Heather Iopu, City Clerk 
Eric Casher, City Attorney 
Tamara Miller, Development Services Director/City Engineer 
Neil Gang, Police Chief 
Chris Wynkoop, Fire Chief 
 
 
City Clerk Iopu announced the agenda was posted on April 2, 2020 at 4:00 p.m. All legally 
required notice was provided.  City Clerk Iopu announced change to the attendees of the 
Closed Session with City Manager Murray and Greg Ramirez as the Agency designated 
representatives.  Announced that public comments would be received by email to the City Clerk 
during the meeting. 
  
Following an inquiry to the Council, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items 
on the agenda.   
 
 
3. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 

A.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 
City Manager Hector De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 
Employee organizations: PPEA  
 
 

4 of 132



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 2 
 

B.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency designated representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Assistant 
City Manager Hector De La Rosa, Greg Ramirez 
Employee organizations: IAFF 
 

C.       CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Employee organizations: Unrepresented positions- Assistant City Manager, 
Development Services Director, City Engineer, Finance Director, Fire Chief, 
Police Chief, Fire Battalion Chief, Human Resources Specialist, Planning 
Manager, Police Lieutenant, Public Works Manager, Recreation Manager, 
WWTP Manager 
 

 
 
4. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
  
Mayor Swearingen reconvened the meeting at 7:24 p.m. and announced that there was 
no reportable action.  Announced that Closed Session Items B & C of the Closed Session have 
been continued to the next meeting. 
 
Mayor Swearingen gave his report to the public with information regarding the Covid-19 health 
crisis and encouragement to the public to stay safe and contact the City for assistance with 
questions and concerns. 
 
5. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes, and is subject 
to modification by the Mayor.   Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a 
matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The 
City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future 
Council meeting. 
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  David Kurrent, Ivette Ricco, Rafael Menis, “James and 
Citizens for a Better Pinole” 
 
 
6. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 

 
A. Proclamations  

 

 
B. Presentations / Recognitions 

 

 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 

5 of 132



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 3 
 

Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 
The following speaker submitted written comments on Item 7D & 7E that were read aloud and 
will be filed with the agenda packet record for this meeting: Rafael Menis 
 

A. Approve the Minutes of February 25, 2020 
 
B. Receive the February 29, 2020 – March 13, 2020 List of Warrants in the Amount of 

$488,193.18; the March 14, 2020 – April 3, 2020 List of Warrants in the Amount  of   
$238,142.06;   the  March  6,  2020   Payroll   in  the  Amount   of 
$434,213.29; the March 20, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $403,041.51; and the 
April 3, 2020 Payroll in the Amount of $408,503.14. 
 

C. Approving The Pinole Salary Schedule For All Represented And Unrepresented 
Employee Classifications In Conformance With California Code Of Regulations, Title 
2, Section 570.5 [Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (De La Rosa)] 
 

D. Revised Five-Year Forecast [Action: Receive and File Report (A. Miller)] 
 

E. Housing Successor Annual Report For Fiscal Year 2018-19 [Action: Receive and File 
Report (De La Rosa)] 
 

F. Adopt A Resolution Accepting The Fernandez Park Restroom Building Replacement 
Project As Complete And Ratifying The Filing Of A Notice Of Completion [Action: 
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 

G. Adopt A Resolution Initiating Proceedings For The Annual Levy Of Assessments And 
Ordering The Preparation Of The Annual Engineer’s Report For The Pinole Valley 
Road Landscape And Lighting Assessment District For Fiscal Year 2020/2021 
[Action: Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 
 

H. Adopt A Resolution To Adopt A List Of Projects For Fiscal Year 2020/21 Funded By 
SB 1: The Road Repair And Accountability Act Of 2017 [Action:  Adopt Resolution 
per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
 
 

ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Tave/Martinez-Rubin to approve Consent Calendar 
Items A-H 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6 of 132



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 4 
 

 
 
 
Item 7I was pulled by Council member Salimi for a separate vote: 
 

I. Adopt A Resolution Accepting The Pinole-Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant 
Upgrade  Project  As  Complete  And  Directing  The  Filing  Of  A  Notice  Of Completion 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (T. Miller)] 

 
ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Murray/Martinez-Rubin to approve Consent 
Calendar Item 7I 
 
Vote:   Passed  4-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   Salimi 
Absent:   None 

 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the 
completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official who engaged in 
an ex parte communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record 
prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 
  NONE 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS 

 
A.  Fourth Of July Fireworks Show [Action: Discuss and Provide Direction (De La Rosa) 

 
Assistant City Manager De La Rosa presented a report with background information on the 
item. 
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  “Jim, Neighbors and Friends” 
 
Council members made comments. 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council Members Tave/Swearingen to continue the discussion of 
Fireworks to February 2021 
 
Vote:   Failed  1-4 

Ayes:   Tave 
Noes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi 
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
No action taken and item moved off calendar. 

 
 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Adopt An Urgency Ordinance Enacting A Temporary Moratorium On Evictions 

7 of 132



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 5 
 

Due To Nonpayment Of Rent For Residential And Commercial Tenants Where The  
Failure  To  Pay  Rent  Is  From  Income  Loss  Resulting  From  The  Novel Covid-
19)    [Action:    Adopt    Urgency    Ordinance    per    Staff Recommendation (Casher)] 

 
City Attorney Casher presented report and background information on the item.  
 
The following speakers submitted written comments that were read aloud and will be filed with 
the agenda packet for this meeting:  Rafael Menis, Rhovy Lyn Antonio 
 
Council members made comments and asked questions of staff. 
 
Staff responded to questions. 
 
 
ACTION:  Motion by council members Martinez-Rubin/Tave adopt an urgency ordinance 
enacting a temporary moratorium on evictions due to nonpayment of rent for residential 
and commercial tenants where the  failure  to  pay  rent  is  from  income  loss  resulting  
from  the  novel Covid-19, with the amendment to change the time period to 120 days 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 

Ayes:   Swearingen, Martinez-Rubin, Murray, Salimi, Tave 
Noes:   None  
Abstain:   None 
Absent:   None 

 
 

 
11. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  

 
A. Mayor Report 

1. Announcements 
 

B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 

 
 
Mayor Pro Tem provided an update on WestCat service and how they are addressing the 
decrease in ridership amidst the Covid-19 crisis. 
 
Council member Tave also commented on the WestCat service adjustments and stated that the 
website is a good source of information as the administrative offices are closed and staffing is 
limited at this time. 
 
Council member Murray provided updates from RecycleMore and the current status of various 
recyclying and disposal services in the County. 
 
Council member Salimi announced recent local statistics of the COVID-19 crisis.  Thanked the 
public to adhering to the shelter in place orders and that it is helping to slow the spread. 
 
Council member Tave recognized the people who have tested positive for the virus and 
expressed well wishes to them. 
 

8 of 132



Pinole City Council  
Minutes – April 7, 2020 
Page 6 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Martinez-Rubin announced that it is important to take care of your mental health 
during the COVID-19 crisis. Asked the public to complete the Census 2020 survey.  Thanked 
the public for their information requests and stated that she will continue to work on responses. 
Asked the public to not overfill recycle bins to aid the pickup process and keep streets clean. 

 
D. Council Requests For Future Agenda Items 

 
 
Council member Murray requested a status report on the street repair equipment and when 
work will be performed,  
 
Council Member Murray requested a discussion item regarding issue with lighting and 
landscaping assessment district.  Consensus given. 
 

 
A. City Manager Report / Department Staff 

 
Andrew Murray expressed well wishes to the community and reported that the City is available 
to help residents with questions and concerns.   
  

B. City Attorney Report 
 
No report. 
 
12. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of April 21, 2020 In 

Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
Mayor Swearingen made comments honoring Bob Campbell a local public servant who recently 
passed away.   

At 8:55 p.m., Mayor Swearingen adjourned to the Regular City Council Meeting of April 21, 
2020 In Remembrance of Amber Swartz and Bob Campbell. 

 
Submitted by: 
 

 
________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  
 
 

9 of 132



10 of 132



11 of 132



12 of 132



13 of 132



14 of 132



15 of 132



16 of 132



17 of 132



18 of 132



19 of 132



20 of 132



21 of 132



22 of 132



23 of 132



24 of 132



25 of 132



   

  CITY COUNCIL  
  REPORT 7C 

 
 
DATE: MAY 5, 2020 
 
TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION CONFIRMING CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF LOCAL 

EMERGENCY 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution confirming the continued 
existence of a local emergency.   
 
BACKGROUND & DISCUSSION 
 
On March 18, 2020, the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, 
proclaimed a local emergency pursuant to California Government Code Section 
8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Chapter 2.32. The emergency declaration was 
based on public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the City 
as a consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 ("COVID-19"), 
including confirmed cases in Contra Costa County, as well as, the Contra Costa 
County Department of Health’s shelter in place order dated March 16, 2020. The 
City Council subsequently adopted a resolution affirming the City Manager’s 
emergency declaration.  
 
The California Emergency Services Act requires the City Council to review the need 
for continuing the local emergency at least once every 60 days. However, the Pinole 
Municipal Code requires the City Council to review the need for continuing the local 
emergency every 14 days. The City Council last confirmed the continued existence 
of the emergency at a meeting on April 21, 2020. To ensure the emergency 
declaration does not expire, it is necessary for the City Council to confirm the 
continued existence of the emergency at this meeting. 
 
In recent weeks, there has been progress in stopping the spread of COVID-19 and 
“flattening the curve”. However, the conditions that prompted the original declaration 
of a local emergency continue to exist. Community transmission of COVID-19 
continues to occur, and the number of cases within Contra Costa County has 
continued to rise. There are now over 820 cases within the County, an increase of 
approximately 200 in the last two weeks. Significantly, the Contra Costa Health 
Officer, along with the Health Officer from other Bay Area counties, has extended 
the order for all residents to shelter at home through the month of May. Public health 

26 of 132



City Council Report, 7C 
May 5, 2020 

and safety concerns for persons and property within the City as a consequence of 
the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 continue to exist.  
 
If adopted, the declaration of local emergency will remain in place.  In accordance 
with state law and the Municipal Code, the City Council will review the emergency 
declaration approximately every two weeks until the conditions warrant a termination 
of the emergency declaration.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the resolution ratifying a local 
emergency.  However, the City will consider all options available to seek 
reimbursement for indirect expenses and fiscal impacts through the appropriate 
authorities.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Resolution Confirming Continued Existence of Local Emergency  
 
 
 
 

 

27 of 132



ATTACHMENT A 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2020-XX 
CITY OF PINOLE 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 

CONFIRMING THE CONTINUED EXISTENCE OF A  LOCAL EMERGENCY DUE 
TO COVID-19 

 
 WHEREAS,  Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code Section 
2.32.060 authorize the Director of Emergency Service to proclaim a local emergency when 
conditions of disaster or extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the territorial 
limits of a city exist if the City Council is not in session and provides that the City Council shall 
ratify the proclamation within seven days thereafter; and  
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Code 
Section 2.32.060, the Director of Emergency Services proclaimed the existence of a local 
emergency caused by the Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19), a respiratory disease first 
identified in China that may result in serious illness or death that is easily transmissible from 
person to person, on March 18; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on March 24, the City Council ratified and confirmed the proclamation 
of the existence of a local emergency issued by the Director of Emergency Services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Section 8630 and Pinole Municipal Code 
Section 2.32.060, the City Council must periodically review the need for continuing the local 
emergency; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the conditions that prompted the original declaration of a local emergency 
continue to exist; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the recitals contained in Resolution No. 2020-13, adopted by the City 
Council on March 24, are incorporated into this Resolution as if stated herein; and 
 
 WHEREAS, while there has been progress in stopping the spread of COVID-19,  
community transmission of COVID-19 has continued to occur;  
 
 WHEREAS, the number of cases within Contra Costa County has continued to rise, and 
there are now over 820 confirmed cases of COVID-19 within the County, an increase of 
approximately 200 in two weeks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Contra Costa Health Officer extended the order for all residents to 
shelter at home through the month of May; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the public health and safety concerns for persons and property within the 
City as a consequence of the global spread of novel coronavirus 2019 continue to exist.  

28 of 132



ATTACHMENT A 

2 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the health, safety, and welfare of Pinole residents, businesses, visitors, and 
staff is of utmost importance to the City and additional future measures may be needed to protect 
the community; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City may require additional assistance in the future, and a formal 
declaration of emergency allows the City to access resources in a timely manner in a timely 
fashion; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that conditions of extreme peril to the safety of 
persons and property within the territorial limits of the City related to COVID-19 pandemic 
continue in existence; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that extraordinary measures are required to protect 
the public health, safety, and of persons and property within the City that are or are likely to be 
beyond the control or capability of the services, personnel, equipment, and facilities of the City; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council most recently confirmed the continued existence of a local 
emergency on April 21, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council desires to confirm the continued existence of a local 
emergency within Pinole due to COVID-19. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the City of Pinole 
hereby declares as follows:  
 

1. The local emergency declared by Resolution No. 2020-13 due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic continues to exist within the City of Pinole.  

 
2. During the existence of the declared local emergency, the powers, functions, and 

duties of the City Manager, acting as Director of Emergency Services, and the 
emergency organization of this City shall be those prescribed by State law and by 
ordinances and resolutions of the City of Pinole.  

 
3.  The declaration of local  emergency shall remain in effect until such time that the 

Council determines that the emergency conditions have been abated. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 
5th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  

29 of 132



ATTACHMENT A 

3 
 

I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted on 
this 5th day of May 2020. 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
3517118.1  

30 of 132



CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 7D 

DATE: MAY 5, 2020 

TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 

FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
HECTOR DE LA ROSA, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING A SIDE LETTER TO THE MEMORANDUM OF 
UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND IAFF 
LOCAL 1230 TO EXTEND THE TERM AND IMPLEMENT A SALARY 
INCREASE 

RECOMMENDATION 

City staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) 
approving a side letter (Exhibit 1 to Attachment A) to the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) between the City of Pinole and IAFF Local 1230 to extend the 
term and implement a salary increase. 

BACKGROUND 

Under the provisions of the City’s employer-employee relations resolution, the 
International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1230 is the exclusively recognized 
employee organization that represents City employees in the firefighter/paramedic, 
firefighter, fire engineer, and fire captain classifications. The City and IAFF Local 1230 
are parties to a MOU (Attachment B) that establishes the terms and conditions of 
employment of staff that are represented by IAFF Local 1230. The MOU conforms to 
the requirements of Meyers-Milias-Brown Act (MMBA) and all other applicable 
regulations. 

The current MOU expires on June 30, 2020. The City, through its designated 
representative, Gregory Ramirez of IEDA, and IAFF Local 1230, through its designated 
representative, have negotiated and reached a tentative agreement on a side letter that 
would make two modifications to the current MOU (Attachment B) and subsequent side 
letters (Attachment C) approved by both parties. The proposed new side letter would 1) 
extend the term of the current MOU through June 30, 2021 and 2) provide a three 
percent general wage increase to address cost of living increases and a three percent 
market equity increase to increase the competitiveness of the City’s compensation 
relative to that of peer agencies. 

REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 

Representatives of both parties have negotiated in good faith and in compliance with all 
applicable requirements to reach a tentative agreement on a side letter that would 
extend the term of the current MOU for one year and provide salary increases. The side 

31 of 132



letter accommodates the interests of both parties. The employees represented by IAFF 
Local 1230 have voted in favor of the proposed side letter. The final step required to 
enact the side letter is approval by the City Council. 

The salaries and total compensation paid by the City to certain classifications is 
significantly below that paid in peer jurisdictions. This makes it more challenging for the 
City to attract and retain, over the long run, quality employees, which are necessary to 
provide efficient and effective services. In order to address the gap between the current 
salaries and total compensation of Pinole’s employees represented by IAFF Local 1230 
and the salaries and total compensation offered by peer jurisdictions, the City has 
negotiated a side letter that provides a three percent general wage increase to address 
cost of living inflation and a three percent market equity increase, both effective July 1, 
2020. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

A three percent base salary increase plus a three percent market adjustment for the 
employees represented by IAFF Local 1230 is expected to cost the City approximately 
$71,000 in salary annually, approximately $113,000 in total when accounting for salary, 
other wages (such as overtime), and salary-driven benefits (life insurance, disability, 
etc.). The City’s long-term financial forecast assumes a three percent annual salary 
increase for this group. 

Since the onset of the Great Recession, and through the long, modest recovery, Pinole 
has maintained relatively low employee salaries and benefits. This has, in part, allowed 
the City to assemble significant reserves, and has left the City in a much better financial 
position than many other municipalities. However, it has resulted in an employee 
attraction and retention challenge. Although the City, like all other cities and 
organizations, is entering a period of significant financial uncertainty, the City cannot 
wait any longer to increase the salaries of classifications that are significantly below 
market if the City would like to retain and attract quality employees. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A Resolution 
Exhibit 1 – Side Letter to the MOU between the City of Pinole and IAFF Local 
1230 

B Memorandum of Understanding Between the City of Pinole and the International 
Association of Firefighters Local 1230 July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020 

C Side Letters to the July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020 MOU 

32 of 132



ATTACHMENT A 
RESOLUTION NO. 2020- 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE,  
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,  

 APPROVING A SIDE LETTER TO THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND IAFF LOCAL 1230 TO EXTEND THE TERM 

FOR ONE YEAR AND IMPLEMENT A SALARY INCREASE  

WHEREAS, the International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1230 is the 
exclusively recognized employee organization that represents City employees in the 
firefighter/paramedic, firefighter, fire engineer, and fire captain classifications; and 

WHEREAS, the City and IAFF Local 1230 are parties to a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) that establishes the terms and conditions of employment of staff 
that are represented by IAFF Local 1230; and 

WHEREAS, the City, through its designated representative, and IAFF Local 1230, 
through its designated representative, have negotiated in good faith and in compliance 
with all applicable requirements and reached a tentative agreement on a side letter 
(attached to this resolution as Exhibit 1) that would make two modifications to the current 
MOU and subsequent side letters approved by both parties; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed new side letter would extend the term of the agreement 
through June 30, 2021 and provide a three percent general wage increase to address cost 
of living increases and a three percent market equity increase to increase the 
competitiveness of the City’s compensation relative to that of peer agencies; and 

WHEREAS, the side letter accommodates the interests of both parties. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does 
hereby approve the side letter to the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) attached as 
Exhibit 1 between the City of Pinole and IAFF Local 1230. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held 
on the 5 th day of May 2020 by the following vote: 

AYES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 

33 of 132



I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 5th day of May, 2020. 

____________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC  
City Clerk 

34 of 132



MOU between the City of Pinole and International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1230 
July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2020 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT EXPIRATION EXTENSION 

Page 1 of 2 

I. Parties 

The Parties to this Side Letter of Agreement (herein after “Side Letter”) are the City of Pinole 
(hereinafter referred to as the “City”) and the International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 
1230 (hereinafter referred to as the “Union”). 

II. Background

The Parties are the signatories to a Memorandum of Understanding (hereinafter referred to as the 
“MOU”) setting forth terms and conditions of employment for certain City employees.  The terms 
set forth below amend the existing MOU.  The Parties agree as follows: 

III. MOU Amendments

A. For Purposes of the MOU amendments set forth below, language that is overstruck (e.g. 
overstruck) will be omitted from the MOU.  Language that is italicized and boldfaced will be 
added to the MOU as indicated.  Appendix A “Modified Salary Table Effective FFPP after July 1, 
2020”, attached hereto and referred to below, will be added in its entirety.  The existing MOU 
including all current Side Letters between the Parties will, in all other respects, remain in effect 
without change through the new term specified below. 

B. “Article 5. Salaries and Incentive Pays, Section 5.1 Salaries” of the MOU is hereby amended to 
read as follows: 

“d. Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2020 and concurrent with the 
market equity adjustment below, employees shall receive a three percent (3%) general 
wage increase of the employee’s base hourly wage in effect as of June 30, 2020.  
Effective the first full pay period following July 1, 2020 and concurrent with the above 
general wage increase, employees shall receive a three percent (3%) market equity 
increase of the employee’s base hourly wage in effect as of June 30, 2020.  The total of 
the above increases shall equal six percent (6%) of the employees base hourly wage 
rate in effect as of June 30, 2020 as reflected in the attached ‘Modified Salary Table 
Effective FFPP after July 1, 2020’.” 

C. “Article 29. Duration, Section 29.1 Term” of the MOU is hereby amended to read as follows: 

“This agreement shall be in full force and effect from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020June 
30, 2021. 

IAFF agrees to begin successor agreement negotiations in a timely manner upon request 
by the City.” 

Exhibit 1

35 of 132



MOU between the City of Pinole and International Association of Firefighters (IAFF) Local 1230 
July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2020 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 
CONTRACT EXPIRATION EXTENSION 

Page 2 of 2 

IV. General Provisions

A. This Side Letter of Agreement is contingent upon approval by the City Council of the City of 
Pinole.  Upon adoption of this Side Letter of Agreement by the City Council of the City of Pinole, 
the Parties’ respective duty to meet and confer regarding the terms and conditions of 
employment set forth in the Parties’ MOU shall be deemed to have been exhausted and 
concluded for the revised term of the MOU. 

B. This Side Letter will take effect immediately upon approval by the City Council of the City of 
Pinole. 

C. The written terms herein embody the entire Side Letter of Agreement between the Parties, all 
other terms and conditions of the MOU remain unchanged. 

Agreed to this ______________ day of _______________, 2020 

CITY OF PINOLE 

___________________________________ ________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager Date 

IAFF LOCAL 1230 

___________________________________ ________________ 
Steven Dorsey Date 

___________________________________ ________________ 
Vince Wells, President IAFF  Date 

___________________________________ ________________ 
Larry Menth, Chief Negotiator IAFF  Date 

36 of 132



Effective 7-6-2020 City of Pinole Salary Ranking Page 1

FY 2026-27 1.000  1.000  1.000  1.000  1.000  1.000  1.000  

Bargaining Unit
A 

Monthly
A 

Hourly
B 

Monthly
B

Hourly
C 

Monthly
C

Hourly
D 

Monthly
D

Hourly
 E

Monthly
E

Hourly

LOCAL 1230 @ 07/08/19
Firefighter 6,326.65  26.0714 6,642.99  27.3749 6,975.14  28.7437 7,323.91  30.1809 7,690.11  31.6900
Firefighter/Paramedic 6,959.31  28.6785 7,307.29  30.1124 7,672.66  31.6181 8,056.30  33.1990 8,459.12  34.8590
Fire Engineer 7,263.25  29.9310 7,626.42  31.4276 8,007.75  32.9990 8,408.14  34.6489 8,828.56  36.3814
Fire Captain 8,037.37  33.1210 8,439.25  34.7771 8,861.22  36.5160 9,304.29  38.3418 9,769.51  40.2590

37 of 132



Effective 7-6-2020 City of Pinole Salary Ranking Page 4

Bargaining Unit
A 

Monthly
A 

Hourly
B 

Monthly
B

Hourly
C 

Monthly
C

Hourly
D 

Monthly
D

Hourly
 E

Monthly
E

Hourly
TRAINEE - BENEFITTED @ 07/08/19
PART-TIME
Fire Academy Recruit (EMT-1) 28.2070
Fire Academy Recruit (EMT-P) 32.8499

38 of 132



ATTACHMENT B

39 of 132



40 of 132



41 of 132



42 of 132



43 of 132



44 of 132



45 of 132



46 of 132



47 of 132



48 of 132



49 of 132



50 of 132



51 of 132



52 of 132



53 of 132



54 of 132



55 of 132



56 of 132



57 of 132



58 of 132



59 of 132



60 of 132



61 of 132



62 of 132



63 of 132



64 of 132



65 of 132



66 of 132



67 of 132



68 of 132



69 of 132



70 of 132



71 of 132



72 of 132



73 of 132



74 of 132



( 

(_ 

SIDE LETTER OF AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 

CITY OF PINOLE 

AND 

INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 1230 

This Side Letter is to memorialize an agreement between the City of Pinole ("City") and 
the International Association of Firefighters, Local 1230 ("Local 1230") on the matter of 
bargaining unit employees assigned to a 40-hour workweek. This Side Letter reflects agreed 
upon changes, additions, corrections or clarifications to the Memorandum of Understanding 
("MOU") between the City and Local 1230 dated July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020. 

The City and Local 1230 hereby agree to add the following language under the 
heading of 40-Hour Workweek: 

1 . Assignment. Employees regularly assigned to shift work (56-hour 
week employees) may periodically be scheduled to a non-shift 40-hours a week 
assignment. The City will solicit interest via Department memorandum and e-mail to 
all personnel at least 10 calendar days in advance of the assignment. The notice of 
assignment to a 40-hour position will state the desired qualifications and how to 
submit interest. The Chief and/or his/her designee shall select from the interested 
employees. In the event, no employees submit interest, or no qualified employee 
submits interest, the Chief and/or his/her designee may assign an employee. The 
following provisions will apply when an employee is assigned to a special 
assignment that exceeds one pay period. Light duty will be administered as 
provided under MOU Article 22.1. 

2. Hours of Work. Hours of work to be performed by a 40-hour employee 
will generally be scheduled between 7:00 am and 6:00 pm, Monday through Friday. 

3. Salary Conversion. While assigned to work as a 40-hour employee, 
the employee will receive the same base salary associated with the employee's 
classification, except that hourly base rate of pay for such an employee will be 
determined by dividing the annual equivalent of that salary by 2,080 hours. An 
employee eligible for incentives, allowances, or differentials shall continue to 
receive these for the duration of the 40-hour assignment. Because employees in a 
40-hour schedule do not have overtime hours included as part of their regularly 
scheduled hours, the employee will receive a special assignment differential equal 
to 2.6% of base monthly salary for the period during which the employee is 
assigned to a 40-hour schedule. 

4. Overtime. An employee in a 40-hour assignment must receive 
advance approval from the Fire Chief or designee before working any overtime in 
the 40-hour assignment. A 40-hour employee who works more than 40 hours in a 

ATTACHMENT C

75 of 132



workweek will receive overtime pay in the amount of 1 .5 times the employee's ( _ 
regular rate of pay for each hour worked in excess of 40. A workweek for purposes 
of determining overtime, is defined as Monday through Sunday. Overtime worked in 
the 40-hour assignment will be paid at 1.5 times the 40-hour rate of pay. 

All time in paid status shall count toward an employee's eligibility for overtime 
compensation, consistent with Article 15.3. A 40-hour employee shall be eligible to 
work overtime shifts that do not conflict with their regularly scheduled work hours in 
the 40-hours a week assignment, subject to approval of the Fire Chief or his/her 
designee. In addition, the Fire Chief may direct an employee assigned to a 40-
0hour schedule to work a 56-hour work schedule whenever in his/her judgment 
such work is necessary to provide Fire Department services to the community. 
Employees assigned to a 40-hour schedule that work overtime to cover a 56-hour 
schedule shall be paid for such overtime based on the 56-hour rate. 

Employees in a 40-hour assignment are not eligible to accrue compensatory 
time off while in such an assignment. 

5. Holidays. 40-hour week employees will receive paid time off when 
observing one of the following holidays: 

New Year's Day 
Martin Luther King's Birthday 
President's Day 
Caesar Chavez Day 
Memorial Day 
Independence Day 

Labor Day 
Veteran's Day 
Thanksgiving 
Day after Thanksgiving 
Christmas Day 

Holiday time off for one of the above days will be paid at the rate of eight (8) 
hours at the employee's base hourly rate of pay. Holidays are observed on the day 
of the week on which they occur, except that if the holiday falls on a Saturday, it will 
be observed on the preceding Friday, and if the holiday falls on a Sunday, it will be 
observed on the following Monday. If a holiday falls on a 40-hour employee's 
regularly scheduled day off, the employee will be given the option of receiving 8 
hours of straight time holiday pay or to take an alternate day off within the same pay 
period as the holiday. The employee and his/her immediate supervisor shall 
determine the alternate day to be taken. 

If an employee is assigned to work on a holiday listed above, the employee 
shall receive 8 hours of straight time holiday pay plus compensation at the overtime 
rate for hours actually worked on the holiday. 

If an employee is assigned to work an alternative work schedule (e.g. 4/10 or 
9/80) he/she shall be paid at the base hourly rate of pay for their regularly 
scheduled hours. 

6. Vacation Leave. It is the parties' intent that the dollar value of the 
vacation be the same whether an employee is assigned to a 56-hour schedule or a 
40-hour schedule. To that end, the number of hours in an employee's vacation 

( 

76 of 132



( 

c 

c 

bank will be converted upon being assigned from a 56-hour assignment to a 40-
hour assignment or vice versa. In order to accomplish this conversation, the leave 
balance of a 56-hour employee will be multiplied by 0.714 to establish the hours 
value of the employee's vacation bank upon assignment to a 40-hour week. The 
leave balance of a 40-hour employee will be multiplied by 1 .4 to establish the hours 
value of the employee's vacation bank when assigned to a 56-hour schedule. 

While on a 40-hour assignment an employee will accrue vacation as follows: 

Years of Service 
0 to 4 years 
5 to 9 years 
1 0 to 14 years 
15+ years 

Hours Accrued Per Year 
107.8 hours 
161.4 hours 
189.3 hours 
215.7 hours 

Maximum Accrual 
215.6 hours 
322.8 hours 
378.6 hours 
431.4 hours 

7. Sick Leave. It is the parties' intent that the dollar value of sick leave 
be the same whether an employee is assigned to a 56-hour schedule or a 40-hour 
schedule. To that end, the number of hours in an employee's sick leave bank will 
be converted upon being assigned from a 56-hour assignment to a 40-hour 
assignment or vice versa. In order to accomplish this conversation, the leave 
balance of a 56-hour employee will be multiplied by 0. 714 to establish the hours 
value of the employee's sick leave bank upon assignment to a 40-hour week. The 
leave balance of a 40-hour employee will be multiplied by 1.4 to establish the hours 
value of the employee's sick leave bank when assigned to a 56-hour schedule. 

While on a 40-hour assignment an employee will accrue sick leave at the 
rate of 13.40 hours per month. 

8. Training of Five (5) Days or Less: Employees who attend training for 
five days or less will not be converted to a 40-hour schedule. Instead, the 
employee's shift hours will be reallocated across the week to account for the hours 
to be spent in training. If the number of hours actually spent in training exceeds the 
reallocated shift hours in the week, the employee will be paid overtime 
compensation at the employee's 56-hour rate. For example, if al"! employee is 
scheduled to work 48 shift hours on Monday and Tuesday, and will attend training 
Monday through Friday, the employee's 48 shift hours will be reallocated across the 
Monday through Friday spent in training 

In WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Side Letter of Agreement 
regarding employees in a 40-hour assignment as dated below. 

On behalf of the City If of Local 1230 

~4-
City z ager / /! ~71/cf 

~ 

Date Date I I 
77 of 132



City of Pinole 
New Hire Training Assignment 

For the New Hires in 2018 

The City is interested in testing the arrangement previously proposed by IAFF Local 
1230 regarding a temporary training assignment to coordinate and administer in-house 
training of newly hired sworn Firefighters or sworn Firefighter/Paramedics. The 
provisions of this assignment shall be as follows: 

• The employee selected to perform this temporary training assignment will come 
off of their regular line assignment 56-hour work week schedule and will be 
placed in a 40-hour work week schedule per the side letter of Agreement/MOU. 

• The assignment is open to all ranks. 
• The selection process will consist of a letter of interest from candidates followed 

by an interview with the Fire Chief and Battalion Chief. In the event that no 
employees submit a letter of interest, the letters submitted are withdrawn, or it is 
determined that none of the individuals who submitted interest are qualified to 
serve in this assignment, the Fire Chief or designee may appoint an employee to 
perform this assignment. 

• Once the candidate is chosen, the training assignment may be a one year 
commitment or it may be re-filled on an as needed basis following the above 
selection. 

c~ • Because of the uniqueness of this assignment and the skill set needed, the 
selected employee for the training assignment shall receive a special assignment 
differential of 10% of the employee's base monthly salary while in the training 
assignment. This differential will be in addition to the 2.6% 40-hour work week 
assignment FLSA differential, so that the total of these two differentials is equal 
to 12.6% of the employee's base monthly salary. 

() 

• All other compensation and benefits will be in accordance with the 40-hour work 
week side letter. 

• While working in the training assignment, any overtime beyond the standard 40-
hour work schedule must be approved in advance by the Fire Chief. Overtime 
worked in the training assignment will be paid at the 40-hour rate in accordance 
with the 40-hour schedule. The employee is also eligible to work shifts on the 
weekend under the 48/96 schedule in accordance with the 40-hour side letter. 
Any shift work will be paid as overtime at the 56-hour rate per the 40-hour side 
letter. 

• While working in the training assignment, the assigned employee will have 
access to a City vehicle while on duty and at special events when needed. 

The City recognizes that the employee in the training assignment will need up to 2 
weeks before the start date of the new hire(s) to schedule the training components, 
especially those coordinated with outside agencies. The employee_ in the training 
assignment will work with the Fire Chief or designee to develop a standardized training 
program that will be reviewed by Fire Administration and Local 1230. The City further 

78 of 132



recognizes that other staff may need to "Act Up", work overtime shifts, and/or be 
reassigned to cover the shifts vacated by the employee in the training assignment who 
is performing assignment related duties. The City recognizes that there will be days 
that additional employees may need to be called in or held over to conduct certain ( 
portions of the training. Efforts will be made to schedule training components so as to 
minimize any overtime impacts. All scheduling impacts will be reviewed and approved 
in advance by the City Battalion Chief and Fire Chief. The training assignment will also 
extend approximately one week after the conclusion of the formal training of the new 
hires in order to provide time for the completion of final assessments of the new hires· 
and any necessary paperwork. The duration of each assignment to provide in-house 
training to new hire(s) is expected to be approximately 8 weeks. 

On behalf of the City 

Date 

On behalf of Local 1230 

~otivttL 
Vince Wells 
President, Local 1230 

79 of 132



80 of 132



81 of 132



82 of 132



83 of 132



84 of 132



85 of 132



86 of 132



   

 

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT 8A
   

 
DATE: MAY 5, 2020 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: TAMARA MILLER, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DIRECTOR / CITY 

ENGINEER 
 
SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT FOR THE LEVY AND 

COLLECTION OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR THE PINOLE 
VALLEY ROAD LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT FOR FY 2020/2021, SETTING THE DATE OF THE 
PUBLIC HEARING, APPROVING THE ANNUAL ENGINEER’S 
REPORT 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Staff recommends the City Council adopt a resolution declaring an intent to levy and 
collect assessments for the Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment 
District, setting a public hearing for June 2, 2020, and approving the annual 
Engineer’s Report. 

BACKGROUND 
 
The City Council adopted Resolution 2008-91 forming the Pinole Valley Road 
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District (the “District”), ordering maintenance 
work therein, confirming the diagram and assessment, and providing for the levy of 
annual assessments therein.  Since the inception of the District, the City has 
installed improvements on Pinole Valley Road between Henry Avenue and Ramona 
Street.  The purpose of the District is to provide a stable funding source for the 
ongoing maintenance and operation of the traffic signals, streetlights, and median 
landscaping.  
 
On April 7, 2020, the City Council adopted a resolution initiating proceedings for the 
annual levy of assessments and ordering the preparation of the annual engineer’s 
report for the District for Fiscal Year 2020/2021. This was step one of the process.  
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City Council must take the actions listed below each year to levy and collect the 
assessments for the District.  
 

1. Order the preparation and filing of an annual assessment report. 
2. Determine if there are any changes in the existing improvements or addition 

of new improvements. 

87 of 132



City Council Report, 8A 
May 5, 2020 
 
  2 

 

3. Approve the annual Engineer’s Assessment Report. 
4. Declare your intention to levy and collect assessments. 
5. Declare your intention to conduct a Public Hearing concerning the levy of 

assessments. 
6. Announce any increase in the maximum assessment. 
7. Conduct a Public Hearing. 
8. Approve assessment amounts for the current fiscal year. 
9. Order the assessment amounts to be submitted to the Contra Costa County 

Assessor for placement on the secured property tax roll. 
 
Based upon the District budget and reserves the assessment rates for Fiscal Year 
2020/2021 are proposed to increase from last year due to additional costs necessary  
for utilities. The proposed rates for 2020/2021 are $ 422.04 per assessment unit 
(“AU”) for Zone A and $405.68 per AU for Zone B.  This represents a 3.01% 
increase for Zone A and a 3.32% increase for Zone B.  An AU is equivalent to an 
acre of developable property. When the District was originally approved in 2008, the 
approved assessment rate authorized future increases to account for inflation. The 
proposed rates for Fiscal Year 2020/2021 do not exceed the amount authorized by 
the original approval.  
 
A clerical error was discovered upon review of past formation documentation for the 
District. This Engineer’s Report addresses that clerical error. The total assessment 
units for Zone B decreased slightly as a result of this correction.  
 
 
CALIFORNIA ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY ACT 
 
The proposed actions of the City Council are not a project as defined by the CEQA 
Guidelines and have no impact on the environment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The proposed assessments will be collected for the City by the Contra Costa County 
Tax Collector via the secured property tax bills for the assessable parcels within the 
District.  As stated above, the Fiscal Year 2020/2021 assessment rates will increase 
for Zone A and B.  The total District budget is $42,525.30.    
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
Attachment A - Resolution approving annual report for the Pinole Valley Road 

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District and declaring intention 
to levy and collect assessments in the Pinole Valley Road 
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District. 

 
Attachment B – Draft Annual Assessment Report for the Pinole Valley Road 

Landscape and Lighting Assessment District. 

88 of 132



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. _____ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE DECLARING ITS 
INTENT FOR THE LEVY AND COLLECTION OF ANNUAL ASSESSMENTS FOR 

THE PINOLE VALLEY ROAD LANDSCAPE AND LIGHTING ASSESSMENT 
DISTRICT FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020/2021 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has by previous Resolutions formed said special 

maintenance district and has initiated proceedings for Fiscal Year 2020/2021, pursuant 
to the provisions of the “Landscape and Lighting Act of 1972” (the “1972 Act”), being 
Part 2, Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (commencing with 
Section 22500) that provides for the levy and collection of assessments by Contra 
Costa County to pay for the annual maintenance and servicing costs of all 
improvements and facilities related thereto.  Said special maintenance district is known 
and identified as the Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment District 
(hereafter referred to as the “District”).  The District is comprised of two Zones (Zone A 
and Zone B) which are located on Pinole Valley Road between Henry Avenue and 
Ramona Street; and,  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council has directed the preparation of the Annual 
Engineer’s Report (the “Report”) for the District, in accordance with the 1972 Act; and,  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED BY THE 
CITY COUNCIL, FOR THE DISTRICT, PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 3, SECTION 22624 
OF THE 1972 ACT, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1 Intention: The City Council hereby declares that it is its intention to seek the 
annual levy of the District pursuant to the 1972 Act, over and including the land within 
the District boundaries and to levy and collect assessments on all benefitting land to pay 
the annual costs of the maintenance and servicing of the improvements located within 
the District.  The City Council finds that the public’s best interest requires such levy and 
collection. 
 
Section 2 District Boundaries: The boundaries of the District are described in the 
Report.  Please refer to the Report for a full and complete description of the specific 
boundaries and diagram. 
 
Section 3 Description of Improvements: The improvements within the District may 
include, but are not limited to: turf, shrubs, plants and trees, landscaping, street lighting, 
traffic signals, irrigation and drainage systems, graffiti removal, litter abatement, 
sidewalks, landscape lighting, masonry walls, and associated appurtenances within the 
public right-of-ways or specific easements.  Services provided include all necessary 
service, operations, administration and maintenance required to keep the improvements 
in a healthy, vigorous and satisfactory condition and in proper working order.  The 
specific improvements within the District are detailed in the Report. 
 

89 of 132



 

Section 4 Proposed Assessment Amounts:  For Fiscal Year 2020/2021, the proposed 
assessments are shown in the Report.  Said Report also details any changes or 
increases in the annual assessments. 
 
Section 5 Public Hearing: The City Council hereby declares its intention to conduct a 
Public Hearing annually concerning the levy of assessments for the District in 
accordance with Chapter 3, Section 22626 of the 1972 Act. 
 
Section 6 Notice: The City Council shall give notice of the time and place of the Public 
Hearing to all property owners within the District by causing the publishing of this 
Resolution once in the local newspaper not less than ten (10) days before the date of 
the Public Hearing and by posting a copy of this Resolution on the official bulletin board 
customarily used by the City for the posting of notices. All interested persons shall be 
afforded the opportunity to hear and be heard. 
 
Section 7 Notice of Public Hearing:  Notice is hereby given that a Public Hearing on 
these matters will be held by the City Council on Tuesday June 2, 2020 at or after 
7:00 p.m. at Pinole City Hall, located at 2131 Pear Street, Pinole. 
 
Section 8  Report Approval: The City Council approves the FY 2020/2021 Pinole Valley 
Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment District Annual Engineer’s Report. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Pinole 
held on this 5th day of May, 2020, by the following vote: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS: 
   
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on this 5th day of May 2020. 
 
 
  
 
______________________________________ 
Heather Iopu, CMC 
City Clerk 

 
 

90 of 132



PINOLE VALLEY ROAD
LANDSCAPE AND
LIGHTING ASSESSMENT
DISTRICT

EN
G

IN
EE

R
'S

R
EP

O
R

T
F
Y

2
0
2
0

-
2
1

June 2, 2020

ATTACHMENT B

91 of 132



1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................2 

DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND BOUNDARIES ........................3 

IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES PROVIDED ......................................4 

SECTION II – METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT.........................................4 

DESCRIPTION OF BENEFIT........................................................................5 

ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA ............................................................6 
ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY ...............................................................8 

SECTION III – ZONE BUDGETS ....................................................................9 

DESCRIPTION OF BUDGET ITEMS ........................................................11 

SECTION IV – DISTRICT DIAGRAM .......................................................... 12 

SECTION V – ASSESSMENT ROLL .......................................................... 12 

 

  

92 of 132



2 

 
INTRODUCTION 
 
The City of Pinole (the “City”), under the provisions of the Landscape and Lighting Act of 
1972, Part 2 of Division 15 of the California Streets and Highways Code (the “1972 Act”) 
and the provisions of the California Constitution Article XIII D (the “Constitution”), 
annually levies and collects special assessments from the City’s maintenance 
assessment district designated as: 
 

Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment District 
 
(the “District”) to provide and maintain various landscaping and lighting improvements 
throughout the City that provide special benefits to properties within the City.  
 
The City Council formed the District, and provided for the levy and collection of annual 
assessments on the County tax rolls to provide ongoing funding for costs and expenses 
required to service and maintain the landscaping and lighting improvements within the 
boundaries of the District. The improvements to be provided by the District and 
assessments described herein are made pursuant to the 1972 Act and the substantive 
and procedural provision of the Constitution.  
 
As part of the District formation, the City of Pinole conducted a Property Owner Protest 
Ballot proceeding for the proposed levy of a new assessment pursuant to the provisions 
of the Constitution. In conjunction with this ballot proceeding, the City council conducted 
a noticed public hearing to consider public testimonies, comments, and written protests 
regarding the formation of the District and levy of assessments. Upon conclusion of the 
public hearing, property owner assessment ballots received were opened and tabulated. 
The property owner assessment ballot tabulation resulted in a majority approval of the 
District and assessments of the property owners within the District. The District was 
formed on July 1, 2008 by Resolution no. 2008-91. The District is located on Pinole 
Valley Road and consists of two separate zones: Zone A and Zone B.  
 
This Engineer’s Report (the “Report”) has been prepared pursuant to Chapter 1, Article 
4 and Chapter 3 of the 1972 Act, and outlines the improvements, and proposed 
assessments to be levied in connection with the benefits the properties will receive from 
maintenance and servicing of landscaping improvements within the District for fiscal 
year 2020-21.  
 
The word “parcel,” for the purposes of this Report, refers to an individual property 
assigned its own Assessor’s Parcel Number (“APN”) by the Contra Costa County 
Assessor’s Office. The Contra County Auditor/Controller APN and specific fund 
numbers to identify properties to be assessed on the tax roll for the District 
assessments.   
 
This Report consists of five sections and identifies the following items: 
 

93 of 132



3 

• Plans and Specifications – The location of the District and the specific 
improvements to be maintained.  
 

• Method of Apportionment – How the District costs are allocated and 
apportioned to the assessable parcels.  
 

• Zone Budgets – The District costs and proposed assessments to be levied for 
2020/21 for each Zone based upon the special benefit received.  
 

• District Diagram – A diagram showing the District and Zone boundaries.  
 

• Assessment Roll – A listing of properties to be assessed by APN, Zone, and 
corresponding assessment amounts.  

 
ASSESSMENT SUMMARY 
 

 Total 
Assessable 

Costs 

Total 
Assessable 

Units 

Proposed 
Assessment 

Rate 

Maximum 
Assessment 

Rate 

Zone A $22,281.80 52.796 $422.04 $570.73 

Zone B $20,243.50 49.900 $405.68 $538.78 
Actual assessments are rounded down to the nearest even penny for county tax roll 
purposes.  
 

SECTION I – PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

DESCRIPTION OF THE DISTRICT AND BOUNDARIES 
 
The District consists of two separate zones and is located on Pinole Valley Road, between 
Henry Avenue and Ramona Street.  Zone A is to the north of Interstate I-80 and Zone B 
is to the south of Interstate I-80.  Currently, there are a total of 18 commercial parcels 
within the District, 8 in Zone A and 10 in Zone B.  The number of parcels in Zone A was 
reduced from 8 to 6 and Zone B was reduced from 16 to 15 parcels, due to parcel mergers 
effective for the 2011/2012 tax year.  An annexation also occurred in Zone A for tax year, 
2013/2014, increasing the parcel count for that Zone to 7 and the AU to 52.972. For tax 
year 2018/2019, one parcel was split into two with a slight size reduction, decreasing the 
AU to 52.796. The number of parcels in Zone B was reduced from 15 to 10 due to parcel 
mergers/changes effective for the 2013/2014 and 2014/2015 tax years. A clerical error 
was brought to the City’s attention in December 2019 which has been transcribed over 
time and resulted in a higher AU in Zone B. For FY2020/21, the clerical error has been 
corrected resulting in a lower AU in Zone B.  
 
Please refer to the Section V of this Report, Assessment Roll, for details. 

94 of 132



4 

IMPROVEMENTS AND SERVICES PROVIDED 
 
Improvements within the District which are maintained and serviced may include but are 
not limited to: turf, shrubs, plants and trees, landscaping, street lighting, traffic signals, 
irrigation and drainage systems, graffiti removal, litter abatement, sidewalks, landscape 
lighting, masonry walls and associated appurtenances within the public right-of-way or 
specific easements.   
 
The maintenance of District improvements generally include, but are not limited to, all 
materials, equipment, utilities, labor and incidental expenses, including administrative 
expenses, for the annual operation of the District and maintenance of the improvements.  
Also included is the performance of occasional repairs and the removal or replacement 
of improvements, as needed.   
 
The specific improvements being maintained and serviced within each Zone of the District 
are defined on the following page: 
 
Zone A Improvements (Northerly of I-80 Freeway) 

• Landscaping totaling 16,920 square feet. 
• Irrigation system for landscaping and two irrigation controllers. 
• Maintenance of seven street light poles and fourteen street lights.  
• Maintenance of two and a half traffic signals.   
• Electrical power for street lights, traffic signals and irrigation system. 
• Weed control and abatement. 
• Graffiti abatement. 
• Median repairs and contingency for damage. 
• Litter abatement and collection (2,102 linear feet). 

 
Zone B Improvements (Southerly of I-80 Freeway) 

• Landscaping totaling 18,486 square feet. 
• Irrigation system for landscaping and two irrigation controllers. 
• Maintenance of ten street light poles and twenty street lights.  
• Maintenance of one and a half traffic signals.   
• Electrical power for street lights, traffic signals and irrigation system. 
• Weed control and abatement. 
• Graffiti abatement. 
• Median repairs and contingency for damage. 
• Litter abatement and collection (2,859.58 linear feet). 

 
Reference is made to the plans and specifications for the improvements which are on file 
with the City and are incorporated herein by reference.  
 
SECTION II – METHOD OF APPORTIONMENT 
 

95 of 132



5 

The 1972 Act allows for the establishment of assessment districts by public agencies for 
the purpose of providing certain public improvements as detailed in Section I of this 
Report.  The 1972 Act also requires that the cost of these improvements and services be 
assessed based on benefit received rather than by assessed value of the properties being 
assessed.  In accordance with the 1972 Act, Section 22573:   
 

“The net amount to be assessed upon lands within an assessment 
district may be apportioned by any formula or method which fairly 
distributes the net amount among assessable lots or parcels in 
proportion to the estimated benefits received by each such lot or parcel 
from the improvements” 

 
The method of apportionment described in this Report, and confirmed by the City Council, 
utilizes commonly accepted engineering practices which have been established pursuant 
to the 1972 Act and the California Constitution for the allocation of special benefit 
assessments.  The calculation of assessments is based upon the parcel type and the 
services and improvements provided.  The special benefit received by each lot or parcel 
is over and above any general benefit conferred upon said lots or parcels or to the public 
at large.   

DESCRIPTION OF BENEFIT  
 
Special Benefit 
 
The improvements and associated costs have been allocated to the assessable 
properties within the District based upon the special benefit received by those properties, 
pursuant to the provisions of the 1972 Act.  The improvements for which the properties 
will be assessed have been identified as necessary, were approved by the property 
owners within the District through a Proposition 218 assessment ballot procedure and are 
in compliance with the development plans and General Plan of the City.  As such, the 
improvements and continuing maintenance and servicing are strictly the obligation of the 
properties within the District. 
 
General Benefit 
 
Although the improvements may be visible to passersby or to the public at large, the 
improvements were installed after approval from the property owners and are for the 
benefit of properties within the District.  It has been determined therefore, any access to 
or use by properties or individuals outside the District is completely incidental and the 
costs of operating, maintaining and servicing said improvements provides no measurable 
benefit to said outside properties or individuals. 
 
Definition of Special Benefit 
 
The method of apportionment described in this Report is based on the premise that each 
assessable parcel or unit receives distinct and special benefits from the improvements 

96 of 132



6 

and services provided, including the visual desirability provided by well maintained 
landscaping.  In accordance with Article XIII D, Section 4 of the California Constitution: 
 
“Special benefit means a particular and distinct benefit over and above general 
benefits conferred on real property located in the District or the public at large” 
 
The special benefits associated with local landscape and lighting improvements are 
specifically: 
  
• Enhanced desirability of properties due to proximity of the improvements. 
• Improved aesthetic appeal provided by a positive representation of the community. 
• Improved ingress and egress to property resulting in enhanced traffic flow, reduced 

traffic accidents and consequent reduction in possible property damage. 
• Improved traffic visibility and circulation. 
• Improved accessibility for emergency vehicles. 
• Reduced vandalism and other criminal activity. 
• Enhanced environmental quality provided by adequate green space and other 

landscaping which helps moderate temperatures, reduce noise pollution and 
control dust and debris. 

 

ASSESSMENT RANGE FORMULA 
 
It is generally recognized that most budgetary items will be impacted by inflation in future 
years.  In accordance with the California Constitution, and Government Section 53739 (b) 
(1), assessments “may be adjusted for inflation pursuant to a clearly defined 
formula…”   A formula for an inflationary adjustment is therefore included as part of the 
maximum assessment for this District and was approved by the property owner(s) at the 
time of formation.  The formula, as described below, allows for annual adjustments to the 
budget and the assessments. 
 
Generally, any new or increased assessment requires certain noticing and meeting 
requirements by law, the Government Code excludes certain conditions of a new or 
increased assessment.  These conditions include: 

 
“An assessment that does not exceed an assessment formula or range of 
assessments previously specified in the notice given to the public…and that 
was previously adopted by the agency…” 
 

The initial maximum assessment for the District was established at the time of formation 
and was assessed for the first time during the 2008/2009 fiscal year.  The initial maximum 
assessment for Zone A was $415.52 per Assessment Unit (“AU”).  The initial maximum 
assessment for Zone B was $390.80 per AU.  The initial maximum assessment for each 
Zone has been adjusted each subsequent fiscal year by the following Assessment Range 
Formula: 

 

97 of 132



7 

• The Maximum Assessment Rate allowed each fiscal year (the “Adjusted 
Maximum Assessment Rate”) shall be based on the initial maximum assessment 
established in fiscal year 2008/2009, adjusted annually by the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, Consumer Price Index for the month of April, All Urban Consumers, 
(“CPI”) for the San Francisco/Oakland/San Jose area or two percent (2%), 
whichever is greater.  Should the Bureau of Labor Statistics revise or discontinue 
the preparation of such index, the City reserves the right to use such revised index 
or a comparable system to determine fluctuations in the annual cost of living. 
 
• Each fiscal year, the greater of CPI or 2% shall be applied to the Maximum 
Assessment Rate established the previous fiscal year to calculate the appropriate 
Adjusted Maximum Assessment Rate for the then current fiscal year.   
 
• If the proposed annual assessment rate (assessment per AU) for the upcoming 
fiscal year is less than or equal to the Adjusted Maximum Assessment Rate 
established for that fiscal year then the proposed annual assessment is not 
considered an increased assessment. 

 
Beginning in the second fiscal year after the formation of the District (2009/2010) and 
each fiscal year since, the Maximum Assessment Rate has been recalculated and a new 
Adjusted Maximum Assessment Rate has been established for each fiscal year using the 
Assessment Range Formula described above.  Due to COVID-19, the April 2020 CPI is 
not available therefore a 2% will be applied to the Maximum Assessment Rate from last 
year.  The Zone A Maximum Assessment Rate for the upcoming fiscal year (2020/2021) 
therefore, shall be $570.73.  The Zone B Maximum Assessment Rate for the upcoming 
fiscal year shall be $538.78.  The table below shows the Adjusted Maximum Assessment 
Rate for each Zone, for each fiscal year since the formation of the District.  The Adjusted 
Maximum Assessment Rates have been calculated independently of the annual budget 
and proposed assessment rate for the given fiscal year.  As stated above, if the proposed 
annual assessment for any fiscal year does not exceed the Adjusted Maximum 
Assessment Rate for that year, it is not considered to be an increased assessment under 
the terms of Proposition 218 or the Government Code. 
 
Zone A LLAD Assessment/CPI History 
 

Fiscal Year 
April 
CPI 

Allowable 
Increase 

Actual      April 
CPI 
Calculation 

Adjusted 
Max. 
Assessment 

Actual 
Assessment 

2008/2009 N/A N/A N/A $415.52 $415.82 
2009/2010 0.80% 2.00% 1.020000000 $423.83 $415.82 
2010/2011 1.71% 2.00% 1.020000000 $432.31 $415.82 
2011/2012 2.82% 2.82% 1.028212932 $444.51 $394.80 
2012/2013 2.07% 2.07% 1.020775582 $453.74 $394.80 
2013/2014 2.38% 2.38% 1.023809026 $464.54 $377.74 
2014/2015 2.78% 2.78% 1.027873710 $477.49 $377.74 
2015/2016 2.43% 2.43% 1.024362313 $489.12 $377.74 

98 of 132



8 

2016/2017 2.70% 2.70% 1.026950338 $502.30 $377.74 
2017/2018 3.78% 3.78% 1.037888610 $521.34 $377.74 
2018/2019 3.20% 3.20% 1.032 $538.02 $396.32 
2019/2020 4.0% 4.0% 1.040 $559.54 $409.69 
2020/2021* 2.0% 2.0% 1.020 $570.73 $422.04 

 

Zone B LLAD Assessment/CPI History 

 

Fiscal Year 
April 
CPI 

Allowable 
Increase 

Actual April 
CPI 
Calculation 

Adjusted 
Max. 
Assessment 

Actual 
Assessment 

2008/2009 N/A N/A N/A $390.80 $390.80 
2009/2010 0.80% 2.00% 1.020000000 $398.62 $390.80 
2010/2011 1.71% 2.00% 1.020000000 $406.59 $390.80 
2011/2012 2.82% 2.82% 1.028212932 $418.06 $342.04 
2012/2013 2.07% 2.07% 1.020775582 $426.75 $342.04 
2013/2014 2.38% 2.38% 1.023809026 $436.91 $342.04 
2014/2015 2.78% 2.78% 1.027873710 $449.09 $342.04 
2015/2016 2.43% 2.43% 1.024362313 $460.03 $342.04 
2016/2017 2.70% 2.70% 1.026950338 $472.43 $342.04 
2017/2018 3.78% 3.78% 1.037888610 $490.32 $348.06 
2018/2019 3.20% 3.20% 1.032 $506.01 $359.06 
2019/2020 4.0% 4.0% 1.040 $526.25 $392.64 
2020/2021* 2.0% 2.0% 1.020 $538.78 $405.68 

 
*Due to COVID-19, the April 2020 CPI is not available, therefore a 2% increase was 
applied to both Zones for FY2020/21.  

To impose a new assessment or an increased assessment in excess of the Maximum 
Assessment Rate for the current fiscal year, as provided by the preceding Assessment 
Range Formula, the City must comply with the provisions of the California Constitution, 
Article XIII D, Section 4c that requires a public hearing and certain protest procedures 
including mailed notice of a public hearing and property owner protest balloting.  Property 
owners must approve the proposed new or increased assessment via a property owner 
protest ballot process before any such new or increased assessment can be imposed. 
 
The definition of new or increased assessments includes any assessment which, 1) did 
not previously exist or, 2) exceeds a previously approved assessment amount or 
assessment range formula.  Any assessment range formula must have been previously 
adopted by the agency and approved by the property owners. 

ASSESSMENT METHODOLOGY 
 

99 of 132



9 

The benefit formula used to determine the financial obligation for each parcel is based on 
the improvements benefitting the parcels, as well as the use, or type, of each parcel as 
compared to other parcels that benefit from said improvements.  One of the more common 
approaches to fairly distributing District costs to the benefitting parcels in maintenance 
districts such as this utilizes a methodology referred to as the Assessment Unit (“AU”) 
method of apportionment.  This methodology utilizes various property characteristics such 
as development status, type of development (land-use) and size (units or acreage) to 
compare the proportional benefit of each property compared to similar properties 
benefitting from the improvements.   
The District is comprised of one parcel type; commercial.  Each commercial parcel 
receives similar benefit from the improvements due to the relative size of the properties, 
the specific improvements and proximity of the improvements to the properties.  It has 
been determined that the buildable acreage of each parcel is an appropriate basis in 
calculating the total AU for that parcel.  The individual commercial parcel, acreage is 
multiplied by a factor of 4.00 to determine the total AU for that parcel.  The total Zone AU 
is then divided into the “Total Balance to Assessment” (as shown in Section III of this 
Report) to determine the annual assessment rate.  The AU for each parcel is then 
multiplied by the annual assessment rate to determine the annual assessment for each 
parcel.   
 
SECTION III – ZONE BUDGETS 
 
The estimated budget for the annual maintenance and servicing of the improvements and 
the proportionate share of administration costs for each Zone have been prepared based 
on the estimated and recent historical costs of providing said maintenance and servicing.   
 
Zone A – (Pinole Valley Road North) Budget 

DIRECT COSTS   
    Landscape Maintenance, Litter Abatement & Graffiti Removal $800.00  
    Irrigation System $2,600.00 
    Irrigation Power/Control $950.00 
    Traffic Signal Power $1,000.00 
    Traffic Signal Maintenance – County $5,000.00 
    Traffic Signal Maintenance – Cal-Trans $1,300.00 
    Street Light Maintenance and Power $3,500.00 
    Capital Replacement Fund 1 $6,000.00 
        Direct Costs Sub-Total $21,150.00  
    
INDIRECT COSTS   
    City Administration $1,000.00  
    County Administration Fee $131.80 
        Indirect Costs Sub-Total $1,131.80  
    
TOTAL COSTS $22,281.80  

100 of 132



10 

    
Operating Reserve Collection/(Reduction) * $0.00  
Estimated Operating Reserve Fund Beg. Balance (7/1/2019) $0.00  
Estimated Operating Reserve Fund Ending Balance (6/30/2020) $0.00  
TOTAL BALANCE TO ASSESSMENT $22,081.80  
Total Assessable AU (7 parcels) 52.796 
2019/2020 PROPOSED ASSESSMENT PER AU $422.04  
2019/2020 MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT PER AU $576.33  

 
 
Zone B – (Pinole Valley Road South) Budget 

DIRECT COSTS   
    Landscape Maintenance, Litter Abatement & Graffiti Removal $700.00  
    Irrigation System $2,500.00  
    Irrigation Power/Control $110.00  
    Traffic Signal Power $1,800.00  
    Traffic Signal Maintenance – County $3,500.00  
    Traffic Signal Maintenance – Cal-Trans $1,000.00  
    Street Light Maintenance and Power $5,000.00  
    Capital Replacement Fund 1 $4,500.00  
        Direct Costs Sub-Total $19,110.00  
    
INDIRECT COSTS   
    City Administration $1,000.00  
    County Administration Fee $133.50 
        Indirect Costs Sub-Total $1,133.50  
    

TOTAL COSTS $20,243.50  
Operating Reserve Collection/(Reduction) * $0 

Estimated Operating Reserve Fund Beg. Balance (7/1/2019) $0  

Estimated Operating Reserve Fund Ending Balance (6/30/2020) $0  

TOTAL BALANCE TO ASSESSMENT $20,243.50  
Total Assessable AU (10 parcels) 49.900 

2019/2020 PROPOSED ASSESSMENT PER AU $405.68  
2019/2020 MAXIMUM ASSESSMENT PER AU $542.04  

* The 1972 Act allows the District assessments to “…include a reserve which shall not 
exceed the estimated costs of maintenance and servicing to December 10 of the fiscal 
year, or whenever the city expects to receive its apportionment of special assessments 
and tax collections from the county, whichever is later.”  The Reserve Fund will be 

101 of 132



11 

considered fully funded when the account balance reaches an amount equal to 
approximately 50% of the annual District costs.   
 
1 Capital Replacement Fund – This line item, shown on the budget page for each Zone, 
is specifically intended for the use in replacing the lighting poles for street lights and traffic 
signals within the District.  There are two reasons to consider the replacement of lighting 
poles.  First, there is a finite life span of a standard lighting pole, which is approximately 
50 years.  Secondly, there must be a contingency plan in place for the possibility that a 
lighting pole gets damaged or knocked down, either by way of accident or by natural 
disaster.  The current replacement cost of a lighting pole is approximately $10,500.00.   
 
At the end of FY19/20, the Capital Reserve Replacement Fund was $30,613.24 for the 
District. The City sought to collect $9,500 from both Zones with a goal of increasing the 
Capital Replacement Fund to $40,113.24. We are on target to meet or exceed our goal 
and expect to begin FY20/21 with $40,113.24 in the Capital Reserve Replacement Fund.  
 
Calculation as estimated to replace all lighting poles after 50 years, as well as a 
contingency to account for the possibility of a knockdown, accident or natural disaster: 
 

 
Zone 

 
Cost per 

Pole 

 
Number 
of Poles 

 
Estimated Life 
Span (Years) 

Knockdown 
Contingency 
($50 per pole) 

 
Estimated 

Yearly Cost 
A $10,500 10 50 $500 $2,600.00 
B $10,500 12 50 $600 $3,120.00 

 
$10,500 per light pole * 22 poles = $231,000 / 50 years = $4,620 + $1,100 for Contingency = $5,720 
annually. 
 
The replacement cost of a lighting pole was increased from $6,000 to $10,500 in the 
2015/2016.  The change was initiated based on the actual cost to replace a street light 
pole. The original amount was an estimate which was shown to be less than needed to 
actually replace a street light pole.  The costs will continue to be collected through the 
assessment amounts as part of the Capital Replacement Fund, as shown in the District 
Budgets. 
 
DESCRIPTION OF BUDGET ITEMS 
 
1. Landscape Maintenance – Includes all regularly scheduled labor, material and 
equipment required to properly maintain the landscaping improvements and ensure they 
remain in a healthy and satisfactory condition.  This item also includes the costs of labor 
and material required for weed control and graffiti abatement within the District. 
 
2. Irrigation – Includes the furnishing of water required for the proper maintenance of 
the landscaping. 
 

102 of 132



12 

3. Irrigation Power/Control – Includes the costs of furnishing electrical energy, repairs 
and other maintenance required to operate and maintain the irrigation system. 
 
4. Traffic Signal Maintenance and Power – Includes the costs of furnishing electrical 
energy required for the proper operation of the traffic signals, all regularly scheduled 
labor, and material and equipment required to properly maintain the traffic signals and 
poles which includes replacement of the signal bulbs when necessary. 
 
5. Street Light Maintenance and Power – Includes the costs of furnishing electrical 
energy required for the proper operation of the street lights, all regularly scheduled labor, 
material and equipment required to properly maintain the street lights and poles which 
includes replacement of the bulbs when necessary. 
 
6. Capital Replacement Fund – Includes the costs to build a fund for the eventual 
replacement of the street light and traffic signal poles and other items.   This also serves 
as a contingency for a natural disaster or an accidental knockdown of a street light pole. 
 
7. City Administration – Includes the costs to all particular departments and staff of 
the City for providing coordination of annual District administration process, operation and 
maintenance of the improvements and responding to public concerns. 
 
8. County Administration Fee – Includes the County costs related to placement of the 
annual assessment charges onto the tax roll and the generation of annual tax bills related 
thereto.  Contra Costa County charges a Levy Code Fee of $250 per district, $0.76 
Collection Fee per parcel, and $0.09 Assessor User Code Fee per parcel. Each Zone is 
charged $125 plus $0.85 per parcel. 
 
SECTION IV – DISTRICT DIAGRAM 
 
The following page(s) show the Assessment Diagrams for The Pinole Valley Road 
Landscape and Lighting Assessment District.  The lines and dimensions shown on maps 
of the Contra Costa County Assessor for the current year are incorporated by reference 
herein and made part of this Report. 
 
SECTION V – ASSESSMENT ROLL 
 
Parcel Identification for each lot or parcel within the District shall be based on available 
parcel maps and other property data from the Contra Costa County Assessor’s office as 
they existed at the time this Report was prepared and adopted by the City Council.   
 
A listing of parcels assessed within the District for Fiscal Year 2019/2020, along with the 
corresponding assessment amounts, is included on the following pages.  If any parcel 
submitted for collection is identified by the County Auditor/Controller to be an invalid 
parcel number for the current fiscal year, a corrected parcel number and/or new parcel 
numbers will be identified and resubmitted to the County Auditor/Controller.  The 
assessment amount to be levied and collected for the resubmitted parcel(s) shall be 

103 of 132



13 

based on the method of apportionment and assessment rate approved in this Report.  
Therefore, if a single parcel has changed to multiple parcels, the assessment amounts 
applied to each of the new parcels shall be recalculated and applied according to the 
approved method of apportionment and assessment rate rather than a proportionate 
share of the original assessment. 
 
Non-assessable lots or parcels include areas of public streets and other roadways 
(typically not assigned an APN by the County); dedicated  public easements, open space 
areas and rights-of-way, including public greenbelts and parkways; utility rights-of-way; 
common areas; landlocked parcels; small parcels vacated by the County, bifurcated lots 
and any other property that cannot be developed or has specific development restrictions.  
These types of parcels are considered to receive little or no benefit from the improvements 
and are therefore, exempted from assessment. 
 

Zo
ne

 

APN 
Parcel 

Acreage 
Parcel 
Type 

Parcel 
AU 

2020/2021 
Assessment 

Per AU 
2020/2021 

Assessment 
Applied 

Assessment 
A 401-211-030 3.62 COM 14.48 $422.04  $6,111.08 $6,111.08 
A 401-211-031 1.27 COM 5.08 $422.04  $2,143.94  $2,143.94  
A 401-211-032 0.42 COM 1.68 $422.04  $709.02 $709.02 
A 401-211-033 0.6 CMV  2.40 $422.04  $1,012.89 $1,012.88 
A 401-211-035 0.573 COM 2.292 $422.04  $967.31 $967.30 
A 401-410-005 2.23 COM 8.92 $422.04  $3,764.56 $3,764.56 
A 401-410-019 2.006 COM 8.024 $422.04  $3,486.41 $3,486.40 
A 401-410-020 2.48 COM 9.92 $422.04  $4,186.59 $4,186.58 

    13.199   52.796   $22,281.80 $22,281.76 
                

B 360-010-028 0.344 COM 1.376 $405.68  $558.22 $558.22 
B 360-010-029 1.738 COM 6.952 $405.68  $2,820.30 $2,820.30 
B 360-010-030 0.53 COM 2.12 $405.68  $860.04 $860.04 
B 360-010-031 0.63 COM 2.52 $405.68  $1,022.32 $1,022.32 
B 360-010-033 0.43 COM 1.72 $405.68  $697.77 $697.76 
B 360-150-043 1.24 COM 4.96 $405.68  $2,012.18 $2,012.18 
B 360-150-044 0.48 COM 1.92 $405.68  $778.91 $778.90 
B 401-310-021 5.683 COM 22.732 $405.68  $9,221.95 $9,221.94 
B 401-310-022 0.46 COM 1.84 $405.68  $746.45 $746.44 
B 430-330-027 0.94 COM 3.76 $405.68  $1,525.36 $1,525.36 

    12.475   49.900   $21,243.50 $20,243.46 
  

Totals:  25.674   102.696   $42,525.30  $42,525.22    
Parcel Type: “COM” is a developed commercial property 
“CMV” is an undeveloped commercial property 
 

104 of 132



14 

Zone A – APN 401-410-017 was merged from three former parcels (APN’s 401-410-014,  
401- 410-015 & 401-410-016), and became active and assessable for Fiscal Year 2011/2012.  
APN 401-211-34 was annexed into the District for the 2013/2014 year. APN 401-410-017 was 
split into 401-410-019 and 020 for Fiscal Year 2018/2019.  
 
Zone B – APN’s 401-310-010 and 401-310-013 were merged into APN 401-310-019.  This  
parcel became active and assessable for Fiscal Year 2011/2012. APN’s 401-310-002; 003; 012; 
017; 018 & 019 were merged into APN 401-310-021 for Fiscal Year 2013/2014.  APN 401-310-
018 became parcel 022 for Fiscal Year 2013/2014. APN 430-330-022 merged into APN 401-310-
021 for Fiscal Year 2014/2015. 
 

105 of 132



106 of 132



107 of 132



  
 
 
 
 

  

 CITY COUNCIL  
 REPORT  9A 

 
 
DATE: MAY 5, 2020  
 
TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 
 
FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 
  
SUBJECT: REPORT FROM PINOLE BRANCH LIBRARY ON FISCAL YEAR (FY) 

2019/20 UTILIZATION 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City staff recommends that the City Council accept a report on branch utilization in 
fiscal year (FY) 2019/20 for the Pinole branch of the County library system.  
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Contra Costa County Library system provides library services and materials to 
members of the public online and at multiple branch locations, including the Pinole 
branch at 2935 Pinole Valley Road. In 2019, the City and the County entered into a 
Library Service and Maintenance Agreement (Attachment A). Through the agreement, 
which went into effect on July 1, 2019, the City agreed to pay the cost to maintain the 
Pinole branch building, which the County owns, and the County agreed to provide 35 
open hours weekly. Previously, the City had not contributed any funding toward the 
branch library, and the County provided 24 open hours weekly. 
 
The agreement is for a one-year term, with an automatic renewal. For FY 2019/20, 
the City is scheduled to pay the County $138,284 for maintenance. Either the City or 
the County may terminate the agreement by providing the other party with one year’s 
notice. If the City experiences a substantial budget shortfall, as determined by the City, 
due to circumstances beyond the City’s reasonable control, the City may terminate 
the agreement by providing the County with a 120-day written termination notice. 
 
When approving the agreement in 2019, the City Council requested that the County 
provide a report, in Spring 2020, on the branch’s utilization, to assess the impact of 
the increase in open hours from 24 to 35 weekly. 
 
  

108 of 132



City Council Report, 9A 
May 5, 2020  2 

REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
Staff of the Pinole branch library have provided the City with a memorandum 
(Attachment B) and presentation (Attachment C) on service and material utilization in 
FY 2019/20. This is an informational report to the City Council. The City Council does 
not need to take any action on the report. The report, however, might inform a decision 
by the City Council to either continue or terminate the Library Service and 
Maintenance Agreement. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Accepting the informational report from the County does not have any fiscal impact. 
The County has informed the City that the maintenance cost for FY 2020/21 will be 
$147,735. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):  
 
A.  Library Maintenance and Service Agreement   
B.  Memorandum from Contra Costa County Library of April 24, 2020 on Benefits 

of Increased Hours 
C.  Presentation from Contra Costa County Library on Benefits of Increased 

Hours 

109 of 132



ATTACHMENT A

110 of 132



111 of 132



112 of 132



113 of 132



114 of 132



115 of 132



116 of 132



117 of 132



118 of 132



Memo 

To: Andrew Murray 

From: Francis Adebola-Wilson 

CC: Melinda Cervantes; Gail McPartland 

Date: April 24, 2020 

Re: Benefits of increased hours  

Hi, Mr. Murray. 

Please find below a summary of the increased usage and other data points per your request. 

The presentation to the Pinole City Council outlines the benefits of the extended hours at the Pinole 

library. Here, we provide statistics on library usage by the community, as well as descriptions of the 

many programs and services the library has to offer. 

Families and friends have a place to read, study, think, and explore: Pinole Library benefits from being 

part of the Contra Costa County Library, which extends our variety of materials for offer far beyond the 

healthy collection of items on the shelf at our location. 47316 items were borrowed for the time period 

of July 2019 and February 2020. This represents the first half of our first year of extended hours. 

Families enjoy free resources for information and entertainment: The library supports the 

technological and information needs in the community. We help bridge the digital divide by providing 

public computer access to those who don’t have computers in their homes, as well as training on how to 

use computers and the Internet. Our professional and paraprofessional staff are assets in helping people 

find and utilize verifiable and high-quality information sources and connecting them with experts via 

referrals to other organizations and via library programming. 

Community Values: The people of Pinole have shown their recognition and appreciation of the 

important resources the library provides through their use of the library and participation in our 

programs and services. 

Expanded Hours, Expanded Services: The increase in library hours and additional funding have allowed 

the Pinole Library to increase services and programs in important areas, including early literacy offered  

3 times a week, adult literacy offered 2 times a week, English language learning for non-English speakers 

ATTACHMENT B

119 of 132



2 

offered 2 times a week, and health/wellness/civic responsibility for our teens offered twice in a week, 

and workforce development programs offered once a week. 

Pinole Library provides comparative statistics between the time period of our extended hours and that 

same timeframe from the previous year. The data includes library visits (52098), new card registrations 

(453), monthly program attendance (4906), monthly tallies of items borrowed (47316), and computer 

logins (2123), and WIFI usage (1650). Examples of programs are: Family night programs; Lapsit; After 

School Game Time for Teens; Pinole Book Club; Hooks and Needles: Computer Help; Builders Club; 

Mindfulness Meditation; Finding Your Voice / Pinole Writing Club; Summer Reading & Lunch Program; 

and Community Programs which included Pinole Police Department Literacy Program and hosting Pinole 

City Strategic Plan Public Engagement Meeting.  

A Treasure in Our Community: Benefits of additional hours. The increase in open hours at the Pinole 

Library serves the community in many important ways. Along with having additional access to our 

resources, collections, and facilities, the Library also expand its outreach to the community and support 

more enriching activities at the branch. Our increased hours result in increased support for children, 

teens, seniors, working families, job seekers, and many other people in our community that benefit from 

what our library has to offer. 

Thank you, 

Francis Adebola-Wilson 

Senior Community Library Manager – Pinole Library 

120 of 132



PINOLE LIBRARY

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY LIBRARY

BENEFITS OF INCREASED HOURS

A PRESENTATION TO PINOLE CITY COUNCIL
MAY 5, 2020

ATTACHMENT C

121 of 132



Families and friends have a place to read, study, think, and explore 
ideas.

The Pinole Library offers free access to over 1.4 million 
books, movies, magazines, and more through the Contra Costa 
County Library,  including over 47,800 items available locally in 
Pinole. 

Between July  2019 and February 2020, community members 
borrowed 47316 items from the Pinole Library.  

122 of 132



The Pinole Library forms an essential part of the community’s information 
infrastructure by providing free and equal access to computers, the Internet, and 
information resources.
Bridging the Digital Divide: For many Pinole families, the Library is the only place to 
use computers and access the Internet. 
Computer Literacy: Library staff and volunteers provide instruction to help patrons 
learn computer skills and use information successfully. 

Families enjoy free resources for information and entertainment. 

East Bay Vivarium performer displaying an exotic animal 

Information Literacy: Library staff provide instruction to 
help patrons find and utilize high-quality, verifiable 
information resources. 

Visits from Experts: Programs bring experts in different 
areas of knowledge to the library for fun and engaging 
learning experiences.

123 of 132



Community Values

A community that supports its library reflects a community that 
values learning and is committed to progress

 Over half of Pinole residents have a 
library card.

 The library offers a place for families 
and friends to gather, a place to think 
and explore ideas.

 Families save money and enjoy a free 
source of information and 
entertainment.

124 of 132



Expanded Hours, Expanded Services

The Pinole Library continues to provide programs and services 
that build the skills needed to succeed in school and in life, 
including:

• Early Literacy programs offered 3 times a week to help 
prepare young children to succeed in school. 

• After school programs offered 2 times a week for teens and 
tweens that develop social and self-awareness skills.

• Workforce development programs offered once a week. 

• Literacy tutors offered 2 times a week to help adults 
improve reading skills. 

• English Conversation Groups offered 2 times a week to help 
adults with limited English language skills gain confidence 
in their communication.

We offer an environment where members of the community 
can explore their interests, feed their curiosity, and learn to 
enjoy reading.

Programs bring people in for fun and engaging learning 
experiences.

125 of 132



Community Engagement: Library Visits and New Registrations

All service levels and measures increased with the increased hours.

Dates Library Visits Change % Change

July 2018 – February 2019 41,891

July 2019 – February 2020 52,098 10,207 24%

Dates New Cards Change % Change

July 2018 – February 2019 342

July 2019 – February 2020 453 111 32%

126 of 132



Program 
Attendance

2018/19 2019/20

Attendance Attendance Change % Change
July 1078 924 -154 -14%
August 671 602 -69 -10%
September 644 624 -20 -3%
October 503 547 44 1%
November 409 753 344 84%
December 490 471 -19 -4%
January 335 574 239 71%
February 481 411 -70 -15%

4611 4906 295 14%

127 of 132



Items Borrowed FY 18/19 & FY 19/20

Items 
Borrowed

Items 
Borrowed Change % Change

Months 2018/19 2019/20

July 4917 6541 1624 33%
August 5956 7317 1361 23%
September 5181 6028 847 16%
October 5539 6586 1047 19%
November 5194 6294 1100 21%
December 4871 4472 -399 -8%
January 5622 5161 -461 -8%
February 5123 4917 -206 -4%
Total 42403 47316 4913 12%

128 of 132



Computer Logins

2018/19 2019/20 Change % Change
Logins Logins

July – September 1704 2123 419 25%

129 of 132



QTR 1 FY 2018/19 & FY 2019/20 Wi-Fi Stats

Wifi Logins Statistics
2018 2019 Change % Change

July 382 519 137 36%
August 421 543 122 29%
September 434 588 154 35%

1237 1650 413 33%

130 of 132



A treasure in our community

• Benefits of additional hours:

• Increased participation in community and 
school outreach events, and better support of 
our ongoing community activities hosted in the 
library

• Increased resources for our communities, 
including children, seniors and underserved 
communities

• More working families enjoy the library with 
their children

• Job seekers have more time on a computer
• Teens have more time in a safe space for 

productive activities
• Pinole residents take advantage of important 

resources the library offers
• Safe and welcoming place to pursue educational 

and cultural enrichment activities
131 of 132



Any Questions?

Thank You!

132 of 132


	2020-05-05 Agenda
	7A
	7B
	7C
	Staff Report for Continued Declaration of Local Emergency (002)

	7D
	City-IAFF MOU Term Extend Side Ltr 7-1-20 - 6-30-21 Staff Report FINAL
	City-IAFF MOU Term Extend Side Ltr 7-1-20 - 6-30-21 Reso FINAL
	RESOLUTION NO. 2020-

	Pinole_Fire_SL_Agmt_Contract_Extension_2020-2021_FINAL w Salary Schedule
	07-2020 Salary Schedule FIRE Department.pdf
	SALARY SCHEDULE


	IAFF MOU 3-13-18 7-1-17 - 6-30-20
	IAFF MOU 7-1-17 - 6-30-20 Side Letters Compilation

	8A
	LLAD 2nd of three Staff Report final
	LLAD 2 of 3 Reso Intent to levy final
	2021LLADReport

	9A
	Council Staff Report on FY 19-20 Library Utilization FINAL 2 (002)
	DATE: MAY 5, 2020
	TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

	FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER
	SUBJECT: REPORT FROM PINOLE BRANCH LIBRARY ON FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2019/20 UTILIZATION
	Recommendation

	BACKGROUND
	REVIEW & ANALYSIS

	FISCAL IMPACT
	ATTACHMENT(S):


	Library Agreement Executed
	B Pinole Library Increased Usage and Data Points
	PNL City Hall Presentation_5-5-20(1)
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Community Values�
	Expanded Hours, Expanded Services
	Slide Number 6
	Program Attendance
	Slide Number 8
	Computer Logins
	Slide Number 10
	A treasure in our community
	Slide Number 12



	Return to Agenda: 


